
Q.31       Would TBS consider granting vendors an extension to allow further time to get approvals for clearances and the 
ability to share code repositories from clients? 
  
A.31       An extension until October 19 for bid submissions was confirmed on buyandsell on October 5. Further, bidders 
also have an extension until October 12 to submit questions. 
 
Q.32        Our firm is considering working with a European innovation/design consultancy on this bid, could you clarify if: 
 

a. This has to be done as a joint-venture (JV) or if we can simply work out an arrangement with them in the 
background so their resources are part of our team for the bid? 

b. There can be multiple rates within a category, for example in Category 1 can we propose a different rate for 
certain resources and/or by level of experience? Also, if it is a JV, can one firm have one set of rates and the 
other firm have another? 

c. You can provide guidance on getting resources based outside of Canada through the new fingerprinting 
clearance process? 

 
A.32            (a) It is ultimately up to the Bidder to decide whether it is in their best interest, from a business 
perspective, to form a joint-venture (JV) with another company, or to subcontract with another company. The RFP 
further elaborates on the terms and conditions associated with JVs. 

 
(b) There should only be one set of firm all-inclusive rates per hour. Those rates should then be entered in the 
Pricing Schedule tables of Attachment 1 to Part 3 Pricing Schedule, for evaluation purposes. 
 

a. You should consult the following Government of Canada Contract Security Program website: https://www.tpsgc-
pwgsc.gc.ca/esc-src/formulaires-forms/demande-empreintes-fingerprint-request-eng.html 

 
On that page you will see direction on procedures and an info number to call for additional information. 

 
 
Q.33        What period of time does the quoted total contract budget of $1.175M cover? Is it for the entire duration of the 
contract i.e. until March 31, 2020? 
 
A.33        The total contract budget is for the entire duration of the contract, including any option periods 
 
Q.34        To re-confirm, can a given resource’s relevant experience as a sub-contractor engaged by a prime vendor be 
considered for this bid? 
 
A.34        Resource experience acquired as a sub-contractor can be used as evidence for the bid. Only tasks, deliverables, 
or roles that the sub-contractor was responsible for should be included.  
 
Q.35        Are all components of the bid kept strictly confidential and accessible only to the 
contracting/evaluation/decision-making team? For example can any component of the bid be accessed through an ATIP 
request? As well, what information about bids will be shared with other vendors as part of the communication/debrief 
process? 
 
A.35        The bids are kept confidential and will not be accessible through an ATIP request. 
 
Q.36        With respect to the required documentation for Scopes 3.1.1, 3.2.1 and 3.3.1, if a proposed resource has the 
required skills and experience, but cannot submit the training curriculum and supporting materials because they no 
longer have access to these proprietary tools of a previous employer, is TBS willing to accept an itemized list and brief 
descriptions of such materials?     
 
A.36        Yes, TBS will accept an itemized list and descriptions of the materials. Please note however, that this may limit 
the ability to validate evidence required for the sub-criteria (e.g., pedagogical approach, practical application, validity 
of materials, etc.)  
 
Q.37        In lieu of the Thanksgiving weekend, would Treasury Board consider granting an extension to 15 October? 
 
A.37        CDS has granted an extension until October 19th, 2018 for bid submissions. Further, bidders will have until 
October 12th to submit questions. Please follow out Twitter account and check on the buyandsell page for updates 
 
Q.38        RE: Page 9 of 90 – Section 2.6 Basis of Ownership of Intellectual Property 
 
Can you please provide concrete examples of what constitutes as background information? 
 

https://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/esc-src/formulaires-forms/demande-empreintes-fingerprint-request-eng.html
https://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/esc-src/formulaires-forms/demande-empreintes-fingerprint-request-eng.html


A.38        Background IP is any IP that is not generated/produced as a result of the execution of the contract itself.  
 
Q.39        RE: Page 11 of 90 – Section 2.6 Basis of Ownership of Intellectual Property 
 
It says all intellectual property rights belong to Canada and the Contractor will have no rights. If awarded the contract, 
would it be permissible to display some of the work in a portfolio (for user-centered design) or in case study format to 
show how we improved services for Canada? As part of thought leadership, would the contractors be able to present the 
work at any conferences etc. or talk about their experience of improving services? 
 
A.39        Contractors may request a licence to further profit from the use of the foreground intellectual property owned 
by the Crown, see K3305C (2008-05-12) on page 12. This could include displaying the work in a portfolio or presenting the 
work at conferences. 
 
Q.40        In the case of teaching materials, can the contractor use the materials to teach other workshops etc.? What if 
the user-centered design training material has been devised BEFORE this bid Canada, and most of it also correlates to 
training for Canada? 
 
A.40        Contractors may request a licence to further profit from the use of the foreground intellectual property owned 
by the Crown see K3305C (2008-05-12) on page 12. 
 
Q.41        RE: Page 14 – Section 3.2 Submission of Bid by Email 
 
Do the technical bid, financial bid, and certification have to be sent as separate pdf documents? 
 
A.41        Yes. 
 
Q.42        RE: Page 17, Section 3.3 ii. – Security Clearance 
 
It says bidders are required to submit security information with their bids or before the bid closing date.  
 
During the open house, we heard that clearance would be conducted after if the contract was awarded. Can we get some 
assistance on this? Where is the security clearance application form? 
 
A.42        Per the second note on page 89:  
 
“It is understood that some bidders, particular those outside of Canada, may not have established Canadian government 
security clearances for their proposed resource(s). The Treasury Board of Canada Secretariat encourages all interested 
bidders to submit a bid in response to this Request for Proposal even if those security clearances have not yet been 
attained. It should be noted, however, that an ensuing contract will not be awarded until said clearance(s) is/are 
attained.”  
 
Q.43        RE: Page 24, Section 4.2 – Technical Evaluation b. Reference Checks, iii - Points will not be allocated and/or a 
bidder will not meet the mandatory experience requirement (as applicable) if (1) the reference customer states he or she 
is unable or unwilling to provide the information requested, or (2) the customer reference is not a customer of the Bidder 
itself. 
 
A few years ago, I worked at a digital agency (Trapeze). Their client was Shoppers Drug Mart, a project which I worked 
on. If that is included in the technical case study, would the reference be from Trapeze and the people who worked 
there? Or from Shoppers Drug Mart directly? In this case, the reference (neither Trapeze or Shoppers) is not a customer of 
the bidder (my current company through which I'm bidding). 
 
A.43        The reference should be Shoppers Drug Mart, as they were the organization for which the work was conducted 
for. Please see section 3.3, iv, page 18 for more information. 
 
Q.44        RE: Page 30 – Attachment 1 to part 4 Technical Evaluation Criteria 
 
Scope 1 - Digital Government Implementation 
 
The Bidder has delivered a digital service transformation initiative that designed or redesigned and deployed a digital 
public-facing service(s). 
 
Does Saas (Software as a service) count? Can it be enterprise software if one plan or tier of it is public facing? 
 
A.44        TBC 
 



Q.45        RE: Page 52 – 7.8 Canada's total Liability – 7.8.1 i - Max allocation of funds 
 
Are the maximum allocation of funds for each scope or sub scoped for 1 year? Can you provide any insight as to the 
commitment level for the year (Ex: perhaps 4 months of combined total work etc.)? 
 
A.45        The maximum allocation of funds for each scope or sub-scope is for the entire duration of the contract, until 
March 31, 2020. The level of commitment will vary based multiple factors, including but not limited to, the expertise of 
the bidder, the specific tasks or deliverables required by CDS, etc.  
 
Q.46        Are we as a small business still open to taking projects from other clients in the private sector (health, finance) 
or work alongside other startups without any conflict with Canada?  
 
A.46        You may engage in work with other private sector clients or startups as long as there is no real or perceived 
conflict-of-interest insofar as any contract(s) you are awarded as a result of this solicitation 
 
Q.47        Are we still able to deliver any training material to other clients in the corporate sector on human-centered 
design? 
 
A.47        Yes 
 
Q.48        RE: Page 59 – 7.21 Limitation of Liability, Point 2. First Party Liability 
e. The Contractor is also liable for any other direct damages to Canada caused by the 
Contractor's performance or failure to perform the Contract that relate to: 
direct costs to Canada associated with re-procuring the Work from another party if the Contract is terminated either in 
whole or in part for default, up to an aggregate maximum for this subparagraph (ii) of the greater of 0.75 times the total 
estimated cost (meaning the dollar amount shown on the first page of the Contract in the block titled "Total Estimated 
Cost" or shown on each call-up, purchase order or other document used to order goods or services under this instrument), 
or $1,000,000.00 (Canadian Dollars). 
 
Is this covered under liability insurance? Or is the small business required to pay Canada if Canada tries re-procuring the 
work from another party? 
 
A.48        You will need to consult on that matter with any insurance provider you have. If the specifications under 
section e. of 7.21 Limitation of Liability, Point 2. First Party Liability are not covered under liability insurance, then the 
small business will be required to pay Canada if Canada has to terminate the contract with the small business either in 
whole or in part for default and they then have to re-procure the work from another party. 
 
Q.49        After this services agreement, does the small business bid on each individual piece of work (task authorization) 
depending on scope, etc.? 
 
A.49        No, bidders do not need to bid on task authorizations, they will be negotiated with CDS and the bidder.   
 
Q.50        You are asking for a resume of no more than 3 pages. My current resume is 26 pages. I have worked with 18 
Government departments and 5 private sectors organizations in the 18 years of experience I have. If I need to limit the 
resume to 3 pages, it will be more a list of job titles, and brief description of each job. Would this be sufficient? 
 
A.50        Bidders should include information relevant to the evaluation criteria starting on page 29. Please see section 
3.3, iii, for more information on what should be contained in resumes.  
 
Q.51        On page 19, under the PRICING SCHEDULE FOR SUBMISSION OF RESOURCE TYPES, there are estimated level of 
effort numbers provided. Are these numbers sample numbers or the right number of hours you are looking for. And if it is 
just sample numbers. Then based on what criteria, should we estimate the number of hours required? 
 
A.51        The numbers on page 19 are sample numbers only. 
 
Q.52        Regarding training materials that are huge, can we post it on private link for you to download or you prefer to 
have it on a USB? 
 
A.52        The sample of previous training material should be submitted by email. If the file is too large a link to a shared 
space is acceptable.  
 
Q.53        I have extensive experience in Digital Transformation, Service design. And I also provide usability testing 
recruitment, testing, and training. Is it possible to apply multiple scopes for the same resouce? 
 



A.53        Yes, you may apply for one or more scopes or sub-scopes. Please see our blog here: 
https://digital.canada.ca/2018/08/31/rfp/  
 
Q.54        Are there separate budget allocations for reimbursing user research participants? 
 
A.54        TBC 
 
Q.55        Are there separate budget allocations for community partnerships for current or future recruitment of user 
research or testing participants? 
 
A.55        TBC 
 
Q.56        Are we comfortable paying some participants (such as disabled individuals) more than others in order to secure 
their participation? 
 
A.56        Participant compensation figures will be identified at the point of task authorization or through work with the 
technical authority. Compensation amounts may vary between user groups, but must respect tri-council policy guidance 
on inappropriate incentives.  
 
Q.57        Are there existing tools used by CDS that can be leveraged by our team to recruit for participants and then 
communicate research opportunities to them? 
 
A.57        CDS will work with the bidder to identify the appropriate tools for recruitment and communication, however, it 
is ultimately up to the bidder to full-fill the tasks and deliverables identified in the specific scope or sub-scope. Please 
see annex A, section 6, on page 70 for the equipment and information CDS is responsible for.  
 
Q.58        What is the current structure of the user research team at CDS that our team would be collaborating with on 
establishing processes, workflows and key deliverables (e.g. reports, decks etc.)? 
 
A.58        Personnel involved in establishing a recruitment workflow, process, and key deliverables could include, but are 
not limited to: CDS researchers or Head of Research, CDS product managers or Head of Product, the technical authority 
and the contracting authority. More information on CDS structure will be provided at the contract award  
 

https://digital.canada.ca/2018/08/31/rfp/

